
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Meeting 

 
November 7, 2016 

 

1



 
 

November 4, 2016 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 5:30 p.m., 
Monday, November 7, 2016, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.  

 
BOARD WORKSHOP 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

II. Roll Call of Board Members 
 
III. Update on 2015 Bond Architect Project Assignments  
 
IV. Review of Financial Impact and Performance Data of Athletic Programs and 

Consider Future Status of Such Programs  
 

V. Review Public Hearing Process  
 
VI. General Discussion of Meeting Items 

 
VII. Calendar Review 

 
VIII. Adjournment 

 
Additional Closed Session Authority 

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should 
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held 
or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas 
Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, 
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the 
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all 
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s 
attorney on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property. 
 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a 
prospective gift or donation. 
 

2



Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for 
implementation, of security personnel or devices.  
 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a 
hearing during examination of another witness. 
 
Section 551.087– To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial 
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board 
seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the 
College and with which the Board is conducting economic development 
negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such 
business prospect.  
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the 
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or 
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public 

meeting, or 
 

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board 
shall determine. 

 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 
 

On this day, November 4, 2016, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a 
place convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto 
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s 
website, and is readily accessible to the public upon request.  

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

3



November 4, 2016 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 7:00 p.m. 
on Monday, November 7, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District 
Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas. 

 
BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

II. Roll Call of Board Members  
 

III. Invocation and Pledge to the Flags  
 
IV. Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Presentations 

 
V. Student Success Presentations 

 
SACSCOC Self Study Process update   Chris Duke 
   

VI. Communications to the Board of Trustees  
 

VII. Hearing of Such Citizens or Groups of Citizens Desiring to be Heard Before the 
Board 

 
VIII. Informative Reports to the Board 

A. San Jacinto College Financial Statement   
B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statement 
C. Capital Improvement Program  
D. San Jacinto College Building Committee Minutes  
E. San Jacinto College Finance Committee Minutes  
 

ACTION ITEMS  
 

IX. Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget for 
Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 
 

X. Consideration of Approval of Sheldon Early College High School Memorandum 
of Understanding  

 
XI. Consideration of Approval of Closure of Four Athletic Programs in NJCAA 

Division 1 Sports: Men’s Basketball, Women’s Basketball, Men’s Soccer, and 
Women’s Volleyball, Effective May 31, 2018  

 
PURCHASING REQUESTS 

 
XII. Consideration of Purchasing Requests  
 
 

4



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

XIII. Consent Agenda 

(Any item placed on the consent agenda shall be removed and taken up as a separate 
matter, if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted 
on with one (1) motion.) 
A. Approval of the Minutes for the October 10, 2016 Board Workshop and 

Regular Board Meeting  
B. Approval of the Minutes for the October 3, 2016 Public Hearing  
C. Approval of the Budget Transfers 
D. Approval of Personnel Recommendations and Educational Advancement 

Incentives  
E. Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
F. Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting  

 
XIV. Items for Discussion/Possible Action  

(Items removed from the Consent Agenda, will be considered at this time) 
 
XV. Adjournment 

 
 Closed Session Authority 

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should 
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held 
or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas 
Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, 
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the 
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all 
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s 
attorney on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property. 
 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a 
prospective gift or donation. 
 
Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for 
implementation, of security personnel or devices.  
 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a 
hearing during examination of another witness. 
 
Section 551.087– To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial 
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board 
seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the 

5



College and with which the Board is conducting economic development 
negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such 
business prospect.  
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the 
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or 
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public 

meeting, or 
 

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board 
shall determine. 

 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 
On this day, November 4, 2016, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place 
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto Community 
College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s website, and is 
readily accessible to the public upon request.  
 
 
____________________________________________  
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

6



1
7



2
8



3
9



4
10



5
11



6
12



7
13



8
14



9
15



10
16



11
17



12
18



13
19



14
20



15
21



16
22



17
23



18
24



19
25



20
26



21
27



22
28



23
29



24
30



1

31



2

32



3

33



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Executed 
Change Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 YTD 
Expenditures 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
1203 - CC Anders Gym 10,398,474             (9,210,501)             1,187,973               -                              -                             109,723                  1,078,250               9.24%
1102 - CC In-Fill 47,572                    1,197,962               1,245,534               -                              -                             1,196,079               49,456                    96.03%
1909- CC Petrochem/Vo Tech Building -                             175,822                  175,822                  -                              -                             175,822                  -                             100.00%

Sub-total 10,446,046             (7,836,716)             2,609,330               -                              -                             1,481,624               1,127,706               56.78%
North
2202 - NC Nichols Gym 4,949,996               (4,381,454)             568,542                  -                              -                             18,617                    549,925                  3.27%
2102 - NC In-Fill 23,086                    903,178                  926,264                  -                              864                         858,896                  66,504                    92.82%
2612 - NC Plant Chiller 14,225                    1,626,427               1,640,652               -                              1,565,353               11,725                    63,574                    96.13%
2601 - NC Baseball Batting and Pitching 475,965                  84,360                    560,325                  -                              122,240                  426,874                  11,211                    98.00%

Sub-total 5,463,272               (1,767,489)             3,695,783               -                              1,688,457               1,316,112               691,214                  81.30%
South
3202 - SC Smallwood Gym 6,919,331               (6,350,774)             568,557                  -                              -                             18,557                    550,000                  3.26%
3102 - SC In-Fill 23,086                    1,324,393               1,347,479               -                              625                         970,387                  376,468                  72.06%
3601 - SC Softball Press Box 26,500                    18,500                    45,000                    -                              10,420                    19,381                    15,199                    66.22%

Sub-total 6,968,917               (5,007,880)             1,961,037               -                              11,045                    1,008,325               941,667                  51.98%
District
6601 - Generation Park 200,000                  -                             200,000                  -                              -                             198,344                  1,656                      99.17%
6705 - Data Networking 3,100,000               -                             3,100,000               -                              3,075,000               25,000                    99.19%
720100 -  Program Management -                             1,202,954               1,202,954               -                              39,999                    792,720                  370,235                  69.22%
726800 - Contingency 15,671,212             (10,161,995)           5,509,217               -                              -                             -                             5,509,217               -

Sub-total 18,971,212             (8,959,041)             10,012,171             -                              3,114,999               991,065                  5,906,107               41.01%

Projects Substantially Complete
2201 - NC Lehr Library 2,022,600               12,026,576             14,049,176             -                              73,465                    13,397,571             578,140                  95.88%
6803 - Maritime Training Facility 18,000,000             8,614,890               26,614,890             181,654                   519,896                  25,905,974             189,020                  99.29%

Sub-total 20,022,600             20,641,466             40,664,066             181,654                   593,361                  39,303,545             767,160                  98.11%
Projects Closed 
1001 - CC Primary Service Retrofit 2,774,950               1,695,228               4,470,178               -                              -                             4,470,178               -                             100.00%
1109 - CC Maintenance & Police Bldg 3,560,360               2,702,048               6,262,408               -                              -                             6,262,408               -                             100.00%
1202 - CC Davis Library 8,418,096               (155,756)                8,262,340               -                              -                             8,262,340               -                             100.00%
1217 - CC Transportation Center Buildout -                             1,039,383               1,039,383               -                              -                             1,039,383               -                             100.00%
1301 - CC Building 31 Renovation -                             497,887                  497,887                  -                              -                             497,887                  -                             100.00%
1817 - CC Transportation Center 17,333,267             2,998,752               20,332,019             (137,768)                  -                             20,332,019             -                             100.00%
1818 - CC Industrial Tech Buildings 7,758,416               (3,727,679)             4,030,737               -                              -                             4,030,737               -                             100.00%
1820 - CC Paving & Drainage 10,490,274             (913,895)                9,576,379               (207,575)                  -                             9,576,379               -                             100.00%
1821 - CC Allied Health Addition 10,568,880             1,189,925               11,758,805             296,549                   -                             11,758,805             -                             100.00%
1908 - CC Science Building 35,752,627             (148,641)                35,603,986             -                              -                             35,603,986             -                             100.00%
2401 - NC Outdoor Lighting 13,472                    785                         14,257                    -                              -                             14,257                    -                             100.00%
2402 - NC MET Infrastructure N Library 851,510                  (792,067)                59,443                    -                              -                             59,443                    -                             100.00%
2901 - NC Paving & Drainage 3,142,449               (435,395)                2,707,054               (15,714)                   -                             2,707,054               -                             100.00%
2903 - NC Student Success Center 11,093,580             801,084                  11,894,664             (499,063)                  -                             11,894,664             -                             100.00%
2906 - NC Science & Allied Health 42,240,000             (6,014,982)             36,225,018             -                              -                             36,225,018             -                             100.00%
3201 - SC Parker Williams Library 2,449,600               369,372                  2,818,972               -                              -                             2,818,972               -                             100.00%
3401 - SC Traffic Signal Relocation 75,988                    (25,773)                  50,215                    -                              -                             50,215                    -                             100.00%
3402 - SC Water and Electrical Upgrade 29,305                    (5,044)                    24,261                    -                              -                             24,261                    -                             100.00%
3903 - SC Student Success Center 8,220,000               2,074,228               10,294,228             109,650                   -                             10,294,228             -                             100.00%
3905/3911 - SC Paving & Drainage 2,747,068               7,891,993               10,639,061             -                              -                             10,639,061             -                             100.00%
3906 - SC Mechanical Upgrades 1,252,855               (558,604)                694,251                  (19,524)                   -                             694,251                  -                             100.00%
3907 - SC MEP Infrastructure 4,381,500               283,388                  4,664,888               -                              -                             4,664,888               -                             100.00%
*3908 - SC Primary Service at New Site 809,625                  (809,625)                -                             -                              -                             -                             -                             -
3909 - SC Science & Allied Health 53,868,525             (6,251,379)             47,617,145             -                              -                             47,617,145             -                             100.00%
1828/2814/3817 - D DDC Network 2,190,750               316,040                  2,506,790               -                              -                             2,506,789               -                             100.00%
6003 - D Graphics 900,000                  724,824                  1,624,824               -                              -                             1,624,824               -                             100.00%
6902 - D Campus Mechanical Upgrades  1,869,857               518,564                  2,388,421               (3,767)                     -                             2,388,421               -                             100.00%
6007 - D Furniture Consultant 335,000                  (335,000)                -                             -                              -                             -                             -                             -

Sub-total 233,127,954           2,929,659               236,057,613           (477,212)                  -                             236,057,613           -                             100.00%
TOTALS 295,000,000             -                               295,000,000             (295,558)                  5,407,862                 280,158,283             9,433,854                 96.80%

2008 Capital Improvement Program
Preliminary Report As of September 30, 2016

34



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments  Current Budget  Executed Change 

Orders 
 Encumbered 

Funds 
 YTD 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 
Percent of Budget 

Encumbered/Expensed
North - CIT
 North CIT - 904605-722909 47,591,645             -                            47,591,645                  -                                         18,564,527            22,490,996            6,536,122         86.27%
Contingency (726900) 2,408,355               -                            2,408,355                    -                                         -                             -                             2,408,355         -                                                     

Sub-total 50,000,000             -                            50,000,000                  -                                         18,564,527            22,490,996            8,944,477         82.11%

2015 Revenue Bond 
Preliminary Report As of September 30, 2016

35



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Executed 
Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 YTD 
Expenditures 

 Remaining 
Balance 

 Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed 

Central
1601 - CC Petro-Chemical Center 52,450,000            -                           52,450,000    -                   1,247,933            603,173                 50,598,895         3.53%
1602 - CC Welcome Center 16,600,000            (519,580)              16,080,420    -                   60,856                 25,094                   15,994,470         0.53%
1603 - CC Class Room Building 47,155,000            (1,475,952)           45,679,049    -                   44,300                 26,650                   45,608,099         0.16%
1604 - CC Central Data Closets 2,444,000              (76,497)                2,367,503      -                   -                           -                            2,367,503           -                           
1605 - CC Central Access Security 1,852,000              (57,968)                1,794,032      -                   -                           -                            1,794,032           -                           
1606 - CC Frels Demo 1,153,000              -                           1,153,000      -                   -                           -                            1,153,000           -                           
1607 - CC Davison Building Reno 14,970,000            (468,561)              14,501,439    -                   -                           -                            14,501,439         -                           
1608 - CC McCollum Center Reno 24,685,000            (772,641)              23,912,360    -                   -                           -                            23,912,360         -                           
1609 - CC McCollum North Reno 2,535,000              (79,346)                2,455,655      -                   -                           -                            2,455,655           -                           
1610 - CC Ball Demo 1,725,000              -                           1,725,000      -                   -                           -                            1,725,000           -                           
1611 - CC Anderson Demo 2,654,000              (83,070)                2,570,930      -                   -                           -                            2,570,930           -                           
1612 - CC Stadium and Track Demo 174,000                 (5,446)                  168,554         -                   -                           -                            168,554              -                           
1613 - CC Central DDC Network 1,160,000              (36,308)                1,123,692      -                   -                           -                            1,123,692           -                           
1614 - CC Central Plant Upgrades 1,160,000              (36,308)                1,123,692      -                   -                           -                            1,123,692           -                           

Sub-total 170,717,000           (3,611,676)           167,105,324  -                   1,353,088            654,917                 165,097,319       1.20%
North
2601 - NC Cosmetology/Culinary Center 22,845,000            (715,049)              22,129,952    -                   -                           -                            22,129,952         -                           
2602 - NC North Data Closets 915,000                 (28,640)                886,361         -                   -                           -                            886,361              -                           
2603 - NC Chiller Plant Replacement 1,450,000              (1,450,000)           -                    -                   -                           -                            -                          -                           
2604 - NC Lehr Library Demo 650,000                 (20,345)                629,655         -                   -                           -                            629,655              -                           
2605 - NC North Access/Security 877,000                 (27,450)                849,550         -                   -                           -                            849,550              -                           
2606 - NC Wheeler Reno 14,300,000            (447,590)              13,852,410    -                   -                           -                            13,852,410         -                           
2607 - NC Brightwell Reno 6,628,000              (207,456)              6,420,544      -                   -                           -                            6,420,544           -                           
2608 - NC Spencer Reno 13,000,000            (406,900)              12,593,100    -                   -                           -                            12,593,100         -                           
2609 - NC North DDC Network 580,000                 (18,154)                561,846         -                   -                           -                            561,846              -                           
2610 - NC Underground Utility Tunnel 11,600,000            -                           11,600,000    -                   -                           -                            11,600,000         -                           
2611 - NC 24 Acres Wetlands Mitigation 2,000,000              -                           2,000,000      -                   -                           -                            2,000,000           -                           
2612 - NC Uvalde Expansion 5,000,000              -                           5,000,000      -                   -                           -                            5,000,000           -                           

Sub-total 79,845,000            (3,321,584)           76,523,417    -                   -                           -                            76,523,417         -                           
South
3601 - SC Engineering/Technology Center 28,400,000            (888,920)              27,511,080    -                   110,000               -                            27,401,080         0.40%
3602 - SC Cosmetology Center 16,213,000            (507,467)              15,705,533    -                   148,500               -                            15,557,033         0.95%
3603 - SC Longenecker Reno 22,555,000            (705,972)              21,849,029    -                   -                           -                            21,849,029         -                           
3604 - SC South Data Closets 765,000                 (23,945)                741,056         -                   -                           -                            741,056              -                           
3605 - SC South Primary electrical Upgrade 5,800,000              (181,540)              5,618,460      -                   -                           -                            5,618,460           -                           
3606 - SC South Access/ Security 599,000                 (18,749)                580,251         -                   -                           -                            580,251              -                           
3607 - SC South HW/CW Relocation 10,266,000            (321,326)              9,944,674      -                   -                           -                            9,944,674           -                           
3608 - SC South Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 1,160,000              (36,308)                1,123,692      -                   -                           -                            1,123,692           -                           
3609 - SC Fire House Expansion 5,585,000              (174,811)              5,410,190      -                   -                           -                            5,410,190           -                           
3610 - SC Jones Reno 13,803,000            (432,034)              13,370,966    -                   -                           -                            13,370,966         -                           
3611 - SC Bruce Student Center Reno 10,400,000            (325,520)              10,074,480    -                   -                           -                            10,074,480         -                           
3612 - SC Auto Body Demo 312,000                 -                           312,000         -                   -                           -                            312,000              -                           
3613 - SC South DDC Network 580,000                 (18,154)                561,846         -                   -                           -                            561,846              -                           

Sub-total 116,438,000           (3,634,744)           112,803,256  -                   258,500               -                            112,544,756       0.23%
Maritime

6603 - MC Maritime Expansion 28,000,000            -                           28,000,000    -                   -                           -                            28,000,000         -                           
Sub-total 28,000,000            -                           28,000,000    -                   -                           -                            28,000,000         -                           

Admin
6602 - College Development 30,000,000            -                           30,000,000    -                   -                           -                            30,000,000         -                           
6604 - Dist Construction Studies -                             283,820               283,820         -                   246,880               -                            36,940                86.98%
720100 - Program Management -                             9,118,003            9,118,003      -                   2,088,262            -                            7,029,741           22.90%
736601 - Contingency -                             1,166,180            1,166,180      -                   -                           -                            1,166,180           -                           

Sub-total 30,000,000            10,568,003          40,568,003    -                   2,335,142            -                            38,232,861         5.76%
TOTALS 425,000,000           -                           425,000,000  -                   3,946,731            654,917                 420,398,352       1.08%

Fiscal Year 2016 CIP Expenditure                   654,917 
Total CIP Expenditure                654,917 

2015 Bond -  San Jac Tomorrow Capital Improvement Program
Preliminary  Report as of September 30, 2016

36



ID Task Name Start Finish

1 Central Campus Wed 6/4/08 Fri 1/3/20
2 1820 - Paving & Drainage Mon 12/1/08 Tue 11/1/11
8 1817 - Transportation Center Wed 6/4/08 Thu 7/26/12
15 1818 - Industrial Technology II Mon 2/1/10 Fri 6/7/13
25 1109 - Maintenance/Police Mon 6/6/11 Fri 10/10/14
39 1301 - Building 31 Mon 6/6/11 Fri 6/6/14
53 1821 - Allied Health Sun 3/1/09 Wed 10/31/12
67 1908 - Science Building Wed 7/1/09 Fri 6/20/14
84 1001 - Primary Service Retrofit Mon 10/18/10 Fri 6/26/15
94 1202 - Davis Library Mon 1/9/12 Mon 4/20/15

108 1203 - Anders Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
121 1909 - Petrochemical Building Mon 9/7/15 Fri 1/3/20
122 Programming Mon 9/7/15 Fri 1/29/16
123 Design Mon 2/1/16 Fri 4/21/17
124 Review & Award Fri 7/29/16 Mon 6/5/17
125 SD Review Fri 7/29/16 Fri 7/29/16
126 DD Review Fri 11/25/16 Fri 11/25/16
127 75% Review Fri 1/13/17 Fri 1/13/17
128 100% Review Mon 4/24/17 Mon 4/24/17
129 GMP/Purchasing Fri 5/19/17 Fri 5/19/17
130 Building Committee Tue 5/23/17 Tue 5/23/17
131 Board Meeting Mon 6/5/17 Mon 6/5/17
132 Construction Tue 6/6/17 Fri 12/28/18
133 FF&E Mon 9/10/18 Fri 1/25/19
134 Close-out & Warranty Mon 12/31/18 Fri 1/3/20
135 North Campus Sun 6/1/08 Mon 3/11/19
136 2901 - Pavement & Drainage Sun 6/1/08 Tue 1/25/11
142 2903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 Fri 1/4/13
156 2906 - Science & Allied Health Wed 7/1/09 Mon 12/2/13
170 2201 - Lehr Library Mon 6/3/13 Fri 2/3/17
184 2202 - Nichols Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
198 2909 - Center for Industrial Tech Mon 7/7/14 Mon 2/26/18
199 Programming Mon 7/7/14 Fri 10/3/14
200 Design Mon 10/6/14 Fri 11/13/15
201 Review & Award Mon 10/6/14 Mon 2/1/16
202 SD Review Mon 10/6/14 Mon 10/6/14
203 DD Review Fri 2/20/15 Fri 2/20/15
204 75% Review Fri 10/23/15 Fri 10/23/15
205 100% Review Fri 11/13/15 Fri 11/13/15
206 GMP/Purchasing Fri 1/15/16 Fri 1/15/16
207 Building Committee Tue 1/26/16 Tue 1/26/16
208 Board Meeting Mon 2/1/16 Mon 2/1/16
209 Construction Fri 2/5/16 Fri 2/24/17
210 FF&E Mon 12/12/16 Fri 3/17/17
211 Close Out & Warranty Mon 2/27/17 Mon 2/26/18
212 South Campus Thu 1/1/09 Mon 3/11/19
213 3903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 Fri 3/1/13
227 3905 - Paving & Drainage Sun 3/1/09 Fri 4/19/13
240 3906 - Mechanical Upgrades Thu 1/1/09 Wed 10/26/11
246 3907 - MEP Infrastructure Mon 3/1/10 Thu 5/2/13
252 3909 - Science & Allied Health Mon 6/29/09 Thu 6/5/14
266 3201 - Parker Williams Library Mon 1/9/12 Mon 3/2/15
280 3202 - Smallwood Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
294 District Fri 8/1/08 Mon 8/22/16

4/24

11/13

Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Rizzo and Associates Program Management
Master Schedule

Wed 10/26/16 Page 1

37



4/24

11/13

Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Rizzo and Associates Program Management
Master Schedule

Wed 10/26/16 Page 2

38



Project  Base       
Budget 

 Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Executed 
Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 FY15-16 
Expenditures  

 FY17 
Expenditures 

 Total 
Expenditures 

 Moved to 
Construction in 

Process 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
F17001 - CC Misc. R&R at Central Campus 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     -                           -                             -                            -                             -                                  5,000                -                           
F17014 - CC C30.110 Drill Press 4,137         -                           4,137         -                     4,137                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%

 Sub-total 9,137         -                           9,137         -                     4,137                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  5,000                45.28%
North
F17002 - NC Misc. R&R at North Campus 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     -                           -                             -                            -                             -                                  5,000                -                           
F17012 - NC N10.252 Electrical and AV/Data 1,903         -                           1,903         -                     1,903                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%
F17013 - NC N10.230 Electrical and Av/Data 5,616         -                           5,616         -                     5,616                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%

Sub-total 12,519       -                           12,519       -                     7,519                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  5,000                60.06%
South
F17003 - SC Misc. R&R at South Campus 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     2,334                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  2,666                46.69%
F17011 - SC AECOM Build-out 20,000       -                           20,000       -                     18,424                 -                             -                            -                             -                                  1,576                92.12%
F17015 - SC S6.160 Demountable door 2,721         -                           2,721         -                     444                      -                             -                            -                             -                                  2,277                16.32%

Sub-total 27,721       -                           27,721       -                     21,203                 -                             -                            -                             -                                  6,519                76.48%
District
F17004 - Dist Misc. at the College Admin Bldg. 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     940                      -                             -                            -                             -                                  4,060                18.80%
F17005 - Dist Misc. Furniture Storage All Campuses 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     5,000                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%
F17008 - Dist A1. ADA Design Services 20,360       -                           20,360       -                     20,360                 -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%
F17009 - Dist FI Furniture moves 5,000         -                           5,000         -                     5,000                   -                             -                            -                             -                                  -                        100.00%

Sub-total 35,360       -                           35,360       -                     31,300                 -                             -                            -                             -                                  4,060                88.52%
Contingency (720700) 1,070,684  (82,103)                988,581     -                     -                           -                             -                            -                             -                                  988,581            -                           

Sub-total 1,070,684  (82,103)                988,581     -                     -                           -                             -                            -                             -                                  988,581            -                           

Projects Substantially Complete -                                  
F16081 - Dist A1.114 Renovation for OGM 195,710     (4,914)                  190,796     -                     4,545                   186,251                 -                            186,251                 -                                  -                        100.00%

Sub-total 195,710     (4,914)                  190,796     -                     4,545                   186,251                 -                            186,251                 -                                  -                        100.00%
TOTALS 1,351,131  (87,017)                1,264,114  -                     68,704                 186,251                 -                            186,251                 -                                  1,009,160         20.17%

Repair and Renovation
Preliminary Report As of  September 30, 2016

39



SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT 
Building Committee Meeting 

October 25, 2016 
 
Members Present:  Marie Flickinger, Dan Mims, Brad Hance 
 
Members Absent:  Keith Sinor 
 
Others Trustees Present:  Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson 
 
Others Present:  James Braswell, Bill Dowell, Ken English (AECOM), Jessica Garcia,  

Mike Harris, Joseph Hebert, Brenda Hellyer, Brenda Jones, Bryan Jones, 
Angela Klaus, Ann Kokx-Templet, Chet Lewis, Jerrel Wade 

 
I. The meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m. by committee chair, Marie Flickinger. 

 
II. Roll Call of Committee Members by Marie Flickinger 

a. Dan Mims, present. 
b. Brad Hance, present (arrived at 4:23 p.m.) 
c. Keith Sinor, absent. 
d. Other Trustees present:  Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson 

  
III. Approval of Minutes from the September 20, 2016 Building Committee Meeting 

a. Marie Flickinger presented the minutes of the September 20, 2016, Building Committee 
meeting.  A motion was made by Brad Hance to accept the minutes as presented, 
seconded by Dan Mims.  The minutes were approved as presented. 

 
IV. Recommended Projects and Delivery Methods which will provide the best value to the College 

a. Commissioning Services for Petrochemical Building (Note: this item was presented after 
Item IV-C)  

i. This action requests that the Board of Trustees delegate authority to the Chancellor 
to select a Commissioning Services firm for the Central Campus Petrochemical 
building project. 

ii. This action will provide for third-party monitoring and oversight of the technical 
design, start-up oversight, and verification of systems operation. 

iii. The Commissioning Services firm will be named from those listed in the Technical 
Professional Services Pool (see item “c” below) which will be presented at the next 
Board meeting for review and approval. 
 

b. North CIT Welding Trainer Purchase 
i. This request provides for purchase of two Virtual Reality Arch Welding Trainers 

from the Lincoln Electric Company for the Industrial Technology departments at 
Central and North campuses. 

ii. This proposal has been reviewed and approved by the faculty and academic 
leadership in the welding departments at both campuses.  

iii. With Board approval, we will order the units for Central Campus and North 
Campus.  Delivery is scheduled for December 2016 and March 2017, 
respectively. 
 

c. 2015 Bond Technical Professional Services Pool (Note: this item was presented first for 

40



Building Committee Minutes 
October 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 

section IV)  
i. Approval of this request will grant the College administration authority to 

negotiate with the qualified technical professional service firm for each project 
based on the best match of qualifications, experience, and applicable skills as 
determined by staff subject matter experts as well as consultants engaged by the 
College. 
 

d. Change Order to Amend AECOM Contract 
i. Consideration of approval to amend the AECOM Contract in order to provide 

project information management system (PIMS) services for the 2015 Bond 
Program. 

ii. The contract amendment for the PIMS is intended to serve for a five (5) year 
term. After that, the College can either download all project information or 
purchase software licenses necessary to have continued access to the documents 
and use of the PIMS.  

 
e. 2015 Bond Architect Project Assignment Recommendations 

i. Provided an informational list showing assignment recommendations for 2015 
Bond projects.  Once agreement is reached on the assignments, we will begin 
negotiation with the architects for design of the assigned projects. 

ii. Within 30 days AECOM will provide a master schedule showing critical dates 
for assigned projects.  

 
f. Data Equipment Purchases for North CIT Project 

i. Request to approve the Purchase of Data Equipment from Network Cabling 
Services (NCS) for the North Campus Center for Industrial Technology (CIT) 
facility. 

ii. The purchase provides equipment and installation services for College 
surveillance camera equipment in the CIT building. 
 

V. Reports (Reviewed and in the packet) 
 

a. Bond Project reports were reviewed during Project Updates. Construction Projects report 
documents were provided for individual review. 
 

VI. Project Updates 
 

a. Project 1909 – Petrochemical, Energy, & Technology Center 
i. The building is in the design development phase and is progressing. 

ii. Working on development of the contract for the selected engineering firm 
selected for detailed design of the process unit. 

iii. Bryan Jones and three industry partners visited Brazosport College today to 
review documents used in design and construction of their process technology 
training facilities. 
 

b. Project 2601 - North Baseball Field 
i. Harris County Fire Marshal will visit the project later this week to complete an 

inspection. The project is near completion.   
ii. Once we receive the final certificate for safe occupancy, we will schedule an 

41



Building Committee Minutes 
October 25, 2016 
Page 3 
 

open house event with College Board members and Mr. Andy Pettitte. 
 

c. Project 2909 - North Campus Center for Industrial Technology 
i. We have completed installation of electrical power from CenterPoint energy. 

We have Lincoln welding booths on site, and chilling capacity has been 
installed.  

ii. The completion schedule has been revised due to the rain out days we had in 
June, July, and August. Students are scheduled to begin attending classes in the 
building after Spring Break.  
 

d. Project 6803 - Maritime Technology and Training Center 
i. We have completed all of the items specified in the change order except for 

HVAC heating coil replacements and the building under-floor insulation. This is 
being coordinated with the building occupants and should be completed by end 
of calendar year (2016).  

 
VII. Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 

42



San Jacinto College District 
Finance Committee Meeting 

October 25, 2016 
 

Members Present: Dan Mims, John Moon, Ruede Wheeler, and Larry Wilson 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Other Trustees:  Marie Flickinger 
 
Others Present:  Lori Barbay, Bret Boudreaux, Brenda Hellyer, and Chet Lewis 
 

I. The meeting was called to order at 5:09 p.m. by Ruede Wheeler. 
a. Roll Call of the Committee Members 

i. Dan Mims, present 
ii. John Moon, present 

iii. Larry Wilson, present. 
iv. Acknowledged that Trustee Marie Flickinger was present. 

 
II. Approval of Minutes from the August 2, 2016, Finance Committee Meeting 

a. Dr. Wheeler presented the minutes from the August 2, 2016, Finance Committee 
Meeting.  A motion was made by Mr. Wilson, seconded by Mr. Moon to accept the 
minutes as presented. 
 

Review and Discussion of the Following Internal Audit Reports and Audit Plan by Bret 
Boudreaux: 

 
III. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Central Campus Business Office Cash Count 

a. A surprise cash count was performed on September 8, 2016.  All cash and paper checks 
were verified at the time of the cash count, and no shortages or overages were recorded. 

 
IV. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Central Campus Café Cash Count 

a. A surprise cash count was performed on September 2, 2016.  A shortage of $5.45 was 
noted (start-up funds $1.50 and café sales $3.95). 

b. During the audit it was noted that the door to the cash room was found to be open, and 
the contents of the safe were unattended while the safe was unlocked. 

c. Hilda Boyce, Director of Auxiliary Services, was notified, and procedures have been 
taken to improve the department’s internal controls. 

 
V. Review and Discuss Internal Audit CPD Third-Party Billing Follow-Up Audit 

a. On August 11, 2016, a second follow-up review was performed.  It was noted that there 
were two outstanding Corrective Action Plans (CAPs); one has since been corrected. 

b. The Maritime registration and invoicing CAP is still outstanding. The process is 
determined to be ineffective and has resulted in at least one CPD industry client to not be 
invoiced for services on two separate occasions.   

c. Dr. Hellyer has notified Dr. Allatia Harris regarding this CAP. 
 

VI. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Travel Expenditures Follow-Up Audit 
a. On July 7, 2016, a follow-up review was performed.  It was noted that out of nine of the 

original CAPs, four were complete, two were partially complete, two were incomplete, 
and one was not addressed. 

b. Corrective Action Plan for Travel Policies/Procedures was only partially complete.  
Current travel reimbursement procedures have been amended to set limits for utilization 

43



Finance Committee Minutes 
October 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 

of cash advances and level of documentation required for such transactions.  However, a 
comprehensive travel and incidentals procedure which would provide documented limits 
for meals, hotels, rental cares, and all other travel/incidental items has not been 
developed.  Additionally, there are still not procedures which make a distinction between 
out-of-town and local expenditures (i.e. primarily meals). 

c. Corrective Action Plan for Travel Procedure Inconsistencies is incomplete.  Internal 
Audit highly recommends the establishment of a single cohesive travel policy, which 
would govern travel transactions throughout the College, setting consistent, reasonable 
standards that will simplify enforcement of guidelines and significantly save funds. 

d. Corrective Action Plan for Travel Rewards is incomplete.  To avoid the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in booking travel arrangements, and to ensure that the College is 
receiving the best travel value for amounts expended, the College should develop a local 
policy that assures travel expenditure decisions are made on the basis of value and not to 
benefit individual employees through receipt of travel rewards. 

e. Corrective Action Plan for Duplicate Reimbursement is partially complete.  While a new 
process of checking the JP Morgan Chase website (the College’s Pcard vendor) whenever 
an employee reimbursement request shows original payment made with a Master Card 
(the brand used for all College Pcards) to ensure no duplication exists, this process has 
not been documented in the Accounts Payable departmental procedures.  Documented 
procedures are necessary to ensure all steps are followed in the event of turnover within 
the department. 

f. Corrective Action Plan for Banner Travel and Expense Module.  At this point, the 
College has decided not to move forward with the travel and expense module. 

g. Mr. Lewis will follow-up on the following: 
i. Acquire data that will show the number of employees using their personal credit 

cards for College travel instead of using their College issued Pcard, and acquire, 
if possible, data on the use of personal frequent flyer and hotel accounts. 

ii. Acquire information to evaluate per diem vs. reimbursement. 
iii. Secure a policy and procedures for College-wide travel. 
iv. Mr. Lewis will update the committee in January 2017. 

 
VII. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Employee Exit Processing Follow-Up Audit 

a. On July 26, 2016, a follow-up review was performed.  Out of the original seven CAPs, 
two were complete, four were partially complete, and one was not addressed. 

b. Corrective Action Plan EPAF and Workflow Synchronization was partially complete.  
This CAP has been in the testing phase and is expected to be implemented by the end of 
October 2016. 

c. Corrective Action Plan Exit Checklists was partially complete.  This CAP has been in the 
testing phase and is expected to be implemented by the end of October 2016. 

d. Corrective Action Plan Part-Time Employees was partially complete.  This CAP has been 
in the testing phase and is expected to be implemented by the end of October 2016. 

e. Corrective Action Plan Vendor Master File was partially complete.  This CAP is 
expected to be completed by the end of October 2016.  

 
VIII. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Workers’ Compensation Follow-Up Audit 

a. The follow-up review completed August 31, 2016, found that the final outstanding 
corrective action plan has been completed. 

 
IX. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Diesel Technology Department Audit 

a. A comprehensive audit was performed surrounding the functions and operations of 

44



Finance Committee Minutes 
October 25, 2016 
Page 3 
 

Diesel Technology between September 1, 2014, and April 19, 2016.  The following is a 
summary of the results and recommendations: 

i. Diesel Technology Fixed Assets – Internal Audit recommends that all 
departmental fixed assets with a value in excess of $5,000 be tagged and included 
in the College’s fixed assets system. 

ii. Procurement Approvals – Internal Audit recommends that all vendor invoices 
received for the Diesel Technology Department be approved by the department’s 
budget manager, currently the department chair. 

iii. Scrap Metal Disposal – Internal Audit recommends that the responsibility for 
scrap metal collections be transferred to the Director of Auxiliary Services who 
would work with the Purchasing Department to solicit multiple vendors for a 
College-wide implementation. 

iv. Lab Fees – Internal Audit recommends that the laboratory fee be increased to at 
least partially offset the considerable laboratory expenditures required for 
operating the Diesel Technology program. 

v. Tools and Supplies Inventory Procedures – Internal Audit recommends that 
documented procedures for the administration of tools and supplies within the 
Diesel Technology Department be implemented and include a comprehensive 
inventory of tools and supplies to be conducted at least annually. 

vi. Web Time Entry Utilization – Internal Audit recommends that leaders hold 
employees accountable for neglecting to properly clock-in and clock-out of their 
shift. 

vii. Employee Exit Processing – Beginning immediately, all Diesel Technology 
leaders must begin the practice of completing employee exit checklists for all 
terminating employees, including part-time staff and adjunct faculty and 
submitting this form to the Human Resources Department. 

viii. A follow-up departmental audit will be conducted late 2017. 
 

X. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Construction: Internal Project Management and Accounting 
Audit Report 

a. The second follow-up review completed August 31, 2016, found that the final 
outstanding corrective action plans have been completed. 

 
XI. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Annual Report and FY17 Audit Plan  

a. The Summary of FY16 Internal Audit Work and Proposed FY17 Audit Plan was shared.  
The proposed audit plan for the 2016-2017 audit year was based on risk assessment 
performed during August 2016, as well as management’s requests. 

b. Dr. Hellyer briefly discussed the roll out of an ethics reporting hotline and develop 
training for all College employees related to ethics. 
 

XII. Adjournment – 5:47 p.m. 

45



Action Item “IX” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget 
 for Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 

 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the 2016-
2017 budget for restricted revenue and expenses related to grants. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Federal, state, and local grants may require amendments for receipt of newly awarded grants or 
changes to existing grants. These amendments should be processed in a timely manner in order 
to provide the access to funding to meet the objectives set forth within the grant requirements. 
This budget amendment request includes the additions to restricted revenues and restricted 
expenses as a result of new awards and changes to existing grants received during the month of 
October, 2016. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget amendment will allow the College’s staff to implement the programs in 
accordance with the requirements of funded award amounts. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
Restricted revenues and restricted expenses will each be increased by $461,540, so the net 
impact on the College budget is zero.   
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Office of Grants Management provides continuous monitoring of grant operations, which 
are included in the annual financial report to the Board of Trustees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-11-07-16 
Attachment 2- Grant Detail-11-07-16 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chet Lewis   281-998-6306  chet.lewis@sjcd.edu  
Michael Lee Moore  281-998-6162    michael.moore@sjcd.edu  

46

mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
mailto:michael.moore@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-11-07-16

Amount
Debit

Fund Org. Account Prog. (Credit)

U.S. National Science Foundation/Tidewater Community College - Summer Maritime and Transportation Institute 
(SMART) (Incremental Funding 2017)

Federal Grant Revenue 534708 56700 554100 110000 (63,000)           
Operating Supplies - Consumable 534708 56700 711430 460911 3,800              
Non-Employee Travel Reimbursement 534708 56700 721140 460911 35,200            
Conference-Travel - Lodging 534708 56700 721210 460911 1,500              
Conference-Travel - Meals 534708 56700 721230 460911 1,350              
Travel - Airline 534708 56700 721410 460911 2,000              
Travel - Parking 534708 56700 721430 460911 150                 
Contractual Svcs - Temp Services 534708 56700 731305 460911 19,000            

-$                    

U.S. Department of Agriculture/University of Texas at El Paso - Wheels of Change (New Grant)
Federal Grant Revenue 531002 56700 554100 110000 (19,999)           
Instructional - Fulltime 531002 56700 620100 360931 3,157              
Benefits 531002 56700 650000 360931 1,010              
Staff Travel 531002 56700 721200 360931 900                 
Student Travel 531002 56700 721300 360931 4,407              
Contract Svcs-Indirect Cost/Grants 531002 56700 731500 620909 1,525              
S/A - Stipends 531002 56700 751140 520235 9,000              

-                      

U.S. Department of Justice – Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) Program (New Grant)
Federal Grant Revenue 531604 56700 554100 110000 (3,727)             
Operating Supplies - NonCapital 531604 56700 711420 620500 3,727              

-                      

Texas Workforce Commission - Apprenticeship Training Program (New Grant)
State Grant Revenue 551025 56700 554200 110000 (208,189)         
Non-Instr Labor - Staff 551025 56700 612000 460961 22,820            
Benefits 551025 56700 651100 460961 7,303              
S/A - Departmental Scholarships T&E 551025 56700 751009 520235 178,066          

-                      

Walmart Foundation/League of Innovation - Walmart Brighter Futures 3.0: Accelerating Career Mobility 
for Incumbent Retail Employees (New Grant)

Local Grant Revenue 570022 56700 554300 110000 (166,625)         
Instructional Staff 570022 56700 620100 460961 53,809            
Non Instr Labor - Staff 570022 56700 612000 460961 9,637              
Benefits 570022 56700 651100 460961 15,469            
Supplies 570022 56700 711410 460961 800                 
Travel 570022 56700 721000 460961 3,910              
S/A - Departmental Scholarships T&E 570022 56700 751009 520235 83,000            

-                      

Net Increase (Decrease) -$                    

Note: Credits to revenues are increases and credits to expenses are decreases.
Conversely, debits to revenue are decreases and debits to expenses are increases.

New Grant and Additional Funding Summary by Agency:
National Science Foundation 63,000$      
U.S Department of Agriculture 19,999        
U.S Department of Justice 3,727           
Texas Workforce Commission 208,189      
Walmart Foundation 166,625      

461,540$    

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
 Federal, State, and Local Grant Amendments

November 7, 2016

47



November 7, 2016 Board Book – Grant Amendments Detail List 
 
U.S. National Science Foundation/Tidewater Community College - Summer Maritime and 
Transportation Institute (SMART) (Incremental Funding 2017) 
The SMART Center's Summer Maritime Teacher Institute (SMTI) was created to engage 
frontline educators, guidance counselors, career coaches, and community college faculty. The 
purpose of the SMTI is to: a) increase participant knowledge of maritime and transportation 
careers and the career pathways that exist for students to enter this industry; b) identify, develop, 
and expand industry career pathways; and c) expand the SMART Center repository of 
information, industry data, and professional resources.  This award was expressly contingent 
upon the success of the partnership with Tidewater Community College in Virginia.   
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture/University of Texas at El Paso - Wheels of Change (New Grant) 
San Jacinto College will develop and implement modules for engineering applications in 
agriculture sciences. These proposed modules will be implemented in at least two courses: 
Introduction to Engineering and Engineering Economics. Six students per year that indicate a 
high interest in the field of agricultural sciences will be recruited from these courses. They will 
be encouraged to prepare for careers related to agricultural sciences through incentives that will 
include a stipend, cohort activities and community, and visits to the agricultural labs of our four-
year partner institution, Texas A&M Kingsville.  
 
U.S. Department of Justice – Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) Program (New Grant) 
The BVP Program is a U.S. Department of Justice initiative designed to provide critical 
resources to state, local, and tribal jurisdictions for the sole purpose of purchasing bullet-resistant 
body armor for sworn law enforcement officers. The Office of Justice Programs’ Bureau of 
Justice Assistance has awarded $375 million to over 13,000 jurisdictions to support the 
acquisition of more than 1.1 million bulletproof vests since 1999.  The vests provided will 
protect the officers of the San Jacinto Community College District Police Department. 
 
Texas Workforce Commission - Apprenticeship Training Program (New Grant) 
The purpose of the Apprenticeship Training Program grant is to pay a portion of the cost of job-
related in-person classroom instruction in registered apprenticeship.  Registered apprenticeship is 
a structured system of job training to prepare individuals for occupations in skilled trades and 
other occupations.  Registered apprenticeship combines on-the-job training under the supervision 
of experienced journey workers with job related in-classroom instruction. 
 
Walmart Foundation/League of Innovation - Walmart Brighter Futures 3.0: Accelerating Career 
Mobility for Incumbent Retail Employees (New Grant) 
The 2014 report Bridge the Gap: Rebuilding America’s Middle Skills published by Harvard 
Business School, highlights the skills gap that is facing the nation today.  Over fifty percent of 
retailers find it difficult to fill middle-skill positions.  The report also states that the majority of 
online middle-skills postings are in sales and related occupations.  The project proposes to 
support incumbent retail employees with partial scholarship assistance, while they hone skills 
during the attainment of industry-recognized stackable credentials.  The grant will allow San 
Jacinto College to round out retail business training, so that the program can be sustained into the 
future through partnerships built during this project. 

  Attachment 2- Grant Detail-11-07-16 
 
 

48



Action Item “X” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Sheldon Early College  
High School Memorandum of Understanding 

 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Sheldon Early 
College High School Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  This MOU is an update to the 
previous agreements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Sheldon Early College High School (Sheldon ECHS) has been in existence as a partnership 
with San Jacinto College North Campus since fall 2012.  Enrollment for fall 2016 is 334 
students in grades 9 – 12.  Sheldon ECHS graduated 98 seniors with their high school 
diplomas, with 32 of those students awarded Associate Degrees as part of the first graduating 
class from San Jacinto College. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This updated MOU includes the dual credit tuition and fee waiver of 75 percent which is 
effective for fall 2016 as part of the related tuition and fee changes effective for that same 
time frame. The MOU includes additional language required by the school district due to 
changes in its policies.  New information regarding the Clery Act and emergency 
management protocol has also been included.  This action will continue the project with 125 
new 9th grade students being added each fall semester and more San Jacinto College 
graduates in future years.   
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The budgetary impact is consistent with prior years. Additional analysis will be conducted as 
part of the budget review processes that are being implemented during fiscal year 2016-2017.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Regular meetings are held between the leadership of the school district and College to review 
operations and goals. Each year the number of Sheldon ECHS students who graduate from 
San Jacinto College with an Associate degree will be reported to the Board of Trustees, along 
with information regarding scholarships they have earned and four-year institutions to which 
they will transfer. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Sheldon Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding 2016 - 

2021 
 
 

49



Action Item “X” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Sheldon Early College  
High School Memorandum of Understanding 

 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Laurel V. Williamson  281-998-6184  laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 
Pamela S. Campbell  281-991-2672  pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu 
 

50

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1

51



Attachment 1

52



Attachment 1

53



Attachment 1

54



Attachment 1

55



Attachment 1

56



Attachment 1

57



Attachment 1

58



Attachment 1

59



Attachment 1

60



Attachment 1

61



Attachment 1

62



Attachment 1

63



Attachment 1

64



Attachment 1

65



Attachment 1

66



Attachment 1

67



Attachment 1

68



Attachment 1

69



Attachment 1

70



Action Item “XI” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Closure of Four Athletic Programs in  
NJCAA Division 1 Sports: Men’s Basketball, Women’s Basketball,  

Men’s Soccer, and Women’s Volleyball, Effective May 31, 2018 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the closure of four San 
Jacinto College Division 1 NJCAA athletic programs: Men’s Basketball, Women’s Basketball, 
Men’s Soccer, and Women’s Volleyball. Programs will be closed as of May 31, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The College has a rich athletic history and is proud of all that the student athletes have 
accomplished and the positive publicity they have brought and continue to bring to the College. 
Many have earned scholarships to continue their education, and some have achieved fame by 
participating in professional athletics. Our student athletes perform well in their academic 
studies, in intercollegiate competition, and in service to the community. 
 
In looking toward the future, the College must focus on all students and their completion of 
degrees and certificates that lead to university transfer or into the workforce and great careers.  
Evaluating programs and repurposing resources to meet its strategic goals is a necessary part of 
the continuous improvement at San Jacinto College.  
 
Facility needs and operating costs for six competitive athletic programs continue to grow. 
The Board has discussed these fiscal concerns for the past several years as the College 
conducted planning and determined current and future facility needs. The gymnasiums on each 
campus require significant capital improvements to make them the type of facilities needed for 
competitive athletic programs.  A decision on such investments must be made as the current 
facilities continue to age and are in need of upgrade and renovation.  
 
In addition, the College must consider the operating costs for six competitive athletic programs 
and determine whether or not these costs are sustainable for the long term.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This action would discontinue athletic programs in four NJCAA Division 1 sports: Men’s 
Basketball, Women’s Basketball, Men’s Soccer, and Women’s Volleyball programs at San 
Jacinto College on May 31, 2018.  
 
The College will continue programs in one men’s sport and one women’s sport: NJCAA 
Division 1 Baseball and NJCAA Division 1 Softball. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The athletics programs are not revenue-generating programs for the College. Currently, 
operating expenses for the six programs total $2.6 million annually, affecting approximately 150 
student athletes. These costs do not include facility operating costs. Additionally, the estimated 
capital improvement costs needed to either renovate a 50 year old facility or build a new smaller 

71



Action Item “XI” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Closure of Four Athletic Programs in  
NJCAA Division 1 Sports: Men’s Basketball, Women’s Basketball,  

Men’s Soccer, and Women’s Volleyball, Effective May 31, 2018 
 

gymnasium for the Central Campus range between $15 - $20 million. Capital Improvements are 
also needed for the North Campus gymnasium. For the 2018-2019 academic year, resources that 
have funded Women’s Basketball, Men’s Basketball, Men’s Soccer, and Women’s Volleyball in 
the amount of approximately $1.4 million will be reallocated to meet the College’s strategic 
goals.  
 
The four impacted athletic programs currently have five faculty who receive release time for 
coaching activities and three faculty who receive release time for athletic director duties. 
Release time for coaching in these sports will be reassigned. Release time for athletic director 
duties will be redesigned.  
 
Positions that are anticipated to be eliminated with the discontinuation of the programs are: one 
full-time interim staff coaching position, one student success coordinator/assistant coach 
position, and one athletic trainer position.   
 
The College values our employees and will make every effort to continue their employment 
with the College in positions where there is demand and for which their education/training and 
skills prepare them. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Periodic updates will occur during the 2017-2018 year as the programs move toward closure. 
Updates will be provided to the Board during the 2018-2019 budget and approval process. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None  
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer   281-998-6100   Brenda.Hellyer@sjcd.edu  
Allatia Harris   281-459-7140   Allatia.Harris@sjcd.edu 

72



I.

RFP 16-25

    Temporary Personnel Services (pgs. 2-4) -$                       

RFQ 16-10 

    Construction Technical Services Pool (pgs. 5-7) 500,000                 

TOTAL OF ALL BIDS 500,000                 

II.

Purchase Request #1 - 

    Commissioning Services for Central Campus 

    Petrochemical, Energy and Technology Building (pgs. 8-9) 66,000$                 

Purchase Request #2 - 

    Welding Trainers (pgs. 10-11) 96,172                   

Purchase Request #3

    Amend AECOM Contract for the 2015 Bond Program (pgs. 12-13) -                             

Purchase Request #4 - 

    Data Equipment (pgs. 14-15) 60,000                   

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS 222,172                 

GRAND TOTAL: $722,172

SOLE SOURCE VENDORS, 

COOPERATIVES, AND CONTRACT RENEWALS

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

PURCHASE RECAP

NOVEMBER 7, 2016

PURCHASE REQUESTS,  

EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES BIDS



Purchase RFP #16-25 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Temporary Personnel Services 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract for temporary 
personnel services with Meador Staffing Services and 22nd Century Tech. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A request for proposals, Project Number 16-25, was issued to procure temporary personnel 
services. Seventeen (17) responses were received and evaluated by a team of six (6) 
representatives from Human Resources, the Business Office, Aerospace Academy, and 
Information Technology (IT).  
 
In order to maximize the resources available and best meet the College’s needs, it was 
determined to make awards to two temporary service firms; one that specializes primarily in 
administrative staffing and one who specializes in IT related positions. These two areas 
constitute a large component of the need across the College for temporary staffing personnel.  
Based on the team’s evaluations, it was determined that Meador Staffing Services was selected 
as the primary firm for general and administrative staffing needs. 22nd Century Tech was selected 
as the secondary firm for IT, technical, and other specialized areas. These firms will provide the 
best overall value and availability of temporary personnel to the College. 
 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The College’s ability to be a leader in the higher education arena is directly related to the level 
of service provided to our students and employees. Temporary personnel services provide the 
College with quicker access to trained and qualified employees who can perform job duties on 
an “as needed” basis. These services are needed primarily during temporary staffing shortages 
and campus registration to ensure there is no disruption of services to students and departments. 
The College has no established minimum number of work hours for temporary personnel. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual combined expenditure for this request is $500,000. This expenditure is 
funded by the 2016-2017 operating budgets for the various departments which will utilize 
temporary personnel.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Proposal Tabulation and Final Ranking 
 

2 74



Purchase RFP #16-25 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Temporary Personnel Services 
 

RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Stephen Trncak    281-998-6115  stephen.trncak@sjcd.edu 
Sandra Ramirez   281-991-2648  sandra.ramirez@sjcd.edu 
Genevieve Freeman-Scholes  281-998-6349  genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 

3 75



Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Pr

oj
ec

t N
um

be
r

R
FP

 1
6-

25
N

um
be

r 
of

 E
va

lu
at

or
s

6

T
ot

al
 

Po
in

ts
 

A
va

ila
bl

e

M
ea

do
r 

St
af

fin
g

B
ur

ne
tt

 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

A
de

cc
o

22
nd

 
C

en
tu

ry
 

T
ec

h

T
op

p 
K

no
tc

h 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l 

K
el

ly
 

M
itc

he
ll

K
ey

 
St

af
f

Sm
ith

 
&

 
D

ea
n

Pr
im

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

Pr
o 

St
af

f
L

.K
. J

or
da

n 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te

A
-1

 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l o

f 
H

ou
st

on

R
A

D
go

v,
 

In
c.

C
er

tit
ec

h 
St

af
fin

g 
Sa

m
iti

 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
K

in
gw

oo
d 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
G

lo
ba

l 
E

co
no

m
ic

12
0

10
5

10
1

10
2

90
88

81
91

83
76

84
84

73
73

69
70

65
64

12
0

10
2

99
94

94
75

83
82

77
79

77
78

76
72

66
62

68
55

12
0

10
1

97
87

89
76

86
80

80
74

64
79

81
61

84
64

60
66

12
0

94
73

70
68

10
1

91
86

74
81

68
79

12
0

64
10

2
72

87
75

90
74

77
67

57
69

53
44

54
61

55
45

48
45

34
55

48
42

30
27

25
27

24
22

22
23

22
20

26
19

21
23

16
18

20
17

60
0

50
3

47
2

44
7

42
2

43
1

41
5

40
6

39
0

39
0

37
4

38
4

41
9

33
8

37
1

34
1

34
8

31
9

T
 o

 t 
a 

l  
   

   
P 

o 
i n

 t 
s  

   
   

R
 e

 c
 e

 i 
v 

e 
d

Fi
na

l R
an

ki
ng

B
us

in
es

s Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re

Pr
oj

ec
t A

pp
ro

ac
h 

an
d 

Se
rv

ic
esSt

at
ed

 C
ri

te
ri

a

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 F
irm

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 P
er

so
nn

el
Pr

ic
e 

Pr
op

os
al

R
el

ev
an

t T
al

en
t N

et
w

or
k

V
en

do
r 

N
am

e
T

ot
al

 S
co

re
N

ot
e:

 R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
fir

m
s a

re
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 in

 y
el

lo
w

. 
M

ea
do

r S
ta

ffi
ng

 h
as

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t o

ve
ra

ll 
sc

or
e.

 
22

nd
 C

en
tu

ry
 T

ec
h 

is
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
an

ki
ng

 fi
rm

 th
at

 sp
ec

ia
liz

es
 in

 IT
 p

er
so

nn
el

. 

   
 G

lo
ba

l E
co

no
m

ic
31

9

   
 C

er
tit

ec
h 

St
af

fin
g

37
1

   
 S

am
iti

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

34
1

   
 K

in
gw

oo
d 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
34

8

   
 L

.K
. J

or
da

n 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
38

4
   

 A
-1

 P
er

so
nn

el
 o

f H
ou

st
on

41
9

   
 R

A
D

go
v,

 In
c.

33
8

   
 S

m
ith

 &
 D

ea
n

39
0

   
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

39
0

   
 P

ro
 S

ta
ff

37
4

   
 T

op
p 

K
no

tc
h 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
43

1
   

 K
el

ly
 M

itc
he

ll
41

5
   

 K
ey

 S
ta

ff
40

6

   
 B

ur
ne

tt
 S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
47

2
   

 A
de

cc
o

44
7

   
 2

2n
d 

C
en

tu
ry

 T
ec

h
42

2

   
 M

ea
do

r 
St

af
fin

g
50

3

4 76



RFQ #16-10 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Construction Technical Services Pool 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a pool of construction 
technical services consultants and grant the administration the authority to enter into 
negotiations and contract with the most highly qualified firm on respective new construction, 
renovation, and infrastructure projects. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The 2015 Bond Program was approved by voters in November 2015. The program provides 
$425 million to update infrastructure, security and technology, renovate existing facilities, 
and construct new buildings across all campuses. Construction-related technical services will 
be required for each of the bond projects as well as many construction and facility upgrade 
projects funded with operational funds that occur on an ongoing basis.  Use of some or all of 
these professional services are required at all phases of a construction project.  Because of the 
significant amount of technical service needs anticipated, it was determined the College 
would be best serviced by utilizing a pool of pre-qualified firms in each discipline in order to 
avoid potential delays on projects scheduled to be underway simultaneously.   
 
A request for qualifications (RFQ), Project Number 16-10, was issued to establish a pool of 
qualified technical professional service firms from which to consider spanning nine separate 
disciplines. The RFQ was publicly advertised and forty four firms submitted their written 
statement of qualifications. These written responses were evaluated and ranked by a team 
consisting of six college administrators and staff.  Based on the evaluation team’s scores, it 
was determined that the needs of the College would be best served by approving a pool of 
firms from each discipline.  Some disciplines are engaged more frequently for projects and/or 
for longer durations. In order to accommodate this increased demand in certain disciplines, a 
larger number firms are being recommended. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will grant the administration authority to negotiate with the most 
highly qualified technical professional services firm for each project based on their best 
match of qualifications, experience, and applicable skills as determined by staff subject 
matter experts as well as consultants engaged by the College.   
 
In accordance with Section 2254 of the Texas Government Code, which governs the 
selection process for professional services, the College will initiate negotiations with one 
firm at a time until a satisfactory contract can be reached between the parties.   
 

5 77



RFQ #16-10 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Construction Technical Services Pool 
 

 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
A separate contract will be issued with the firm on a per project basis.  All contracts requiring 
Board approval will be brought forth individually.  Expenditures for technical professional 
services will be funded through the project budget associated with each project. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The award term for the pool of technical professional consultant firms will be for 
approximately five years which is concurrent with the anticipated duration of the currently 
assigned projects in the 2015 Bond Program. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Listing of top ranked firms 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Bill Dowell   281-998-6122   william.dowell@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103   ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu 

6 78



1 ACR Engineering 91.08 1 Walter P. Moore 90.50
2 BES/Terracon 85.00 2 Apollo BBC 88.33
3 Affiliated Engineer 81.25 3 BES/Terracon 87.50
4 Page 80.17 4 Raba Kistner 79.67
5 DBR Engineering Consultants 78.67 5 Smith, Seckman, Reid Inc. 78.58
6 Rice & Gardner Consultants 78.08 6 Zero/Six Consulting 76.25
7 Smith, Seckman, Reid, Inc. 76.42
8 Engineered Air Balance Co. Inc. 69.33
9 Zero/Six Consulting 64.92 1 BES/Terracon 86.42
10 Estes, McClure & Associates 62.50 2 Tolunay-Wong 82.50
11 Noresco 62.17 3 Kleinfelder 81.75
12 Infrastructure Associates 58.75 4 HTS Consultants 80.83

5 Raba Kistner 80.75
6 Geotech Engineering & Testing 77.75

1 Walter P. Moore 90.83 7 QC Laboratories, Inc. 76.58
2 Pacheco Koch 83.17 8 Ninyo & Moore 75.83
3 Johnston LLC 80.58 9 Langan Engineering 70.08
4 IDCUS 79.92 10 SSCI 67.00
5 Brooks & Sparks 79.83
6 Blackline Engineering, LLC 79.83
7 WGAnderson LLC 73.58 1 HTS Consultants 88.00
8 Gessner Engineering 69.42 2 BES/Terracon 87.92
9 Langan Engineering 68.75 3 Fugro Consultants, Inc. 84.25

4 Geotest Engineering 84.25
5 Alpha Testing 83.50

1 ACR Engineering 90.50 6 Raba Kistner 81.08
2 BES/Terracon 85.58 7 Tolunay-Wong 81.00
3 DBR Engineering Consultants 83.75 8 Kleinfelder 80.58
4 Affiliated Engineer 82.58 9 Geotech Engineering & Testing 78.25
5 Rice & Gardner Consultants 81.00 10 Paradigm Consultants, Inc. 77.92
6 E&C Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 80.83 11 QC Laboratories, Inc. 76.00
7 Johnston LLC 77.92 12 Ninyo & Moore 75.67
8 Smith, Seckman, Reid Inc. 77.50 13 Gessner Engineering 74.50
9 Estes, McClure & Associates 68.08 14 Langan Engineering 71.08
10 Infrastructure Associates 64.25 15 C3S, Inc. 67.67

1 Walter P. Moore 91.50 1 Engineered Air Balance Co. Inc. 74.17
2 Ensight, Haynes, Whaley 88.00 2 Digital Air Control 74.08
3 ASA Dally Structural Engineers 87.67 3 Technical Air Balance, Inc. 73.42
4 Henderson Rogers Structural 

Engineering
86.92 4 National Precisionaire 68.17

5 BES/Terracon 85.25 5 Noresco 55.00
6 Concept Engineers 79.00
7 Jaster, Quintanilla & Associates 76.50
8 Gessner Engineering 74.58
9 C3S, Inc. 67.33

Note:  Recommend firms are highlighted in yellow.

RFQ #16-10 Professional Services - Construction
Ranking Summary

Structural Engineering (5)

Envelope Consulting & Testing (2)

Geotechnical/Materials Testing (2)

Environmental Services (2)

Testing and Balancing (2)

Building Commissioning Consultant (2)

Civil Engineering (6)

MEP Engineering (5)

7 79



 Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Contract for Commissioning Services for  
Central Campus Petrochemical, Energy and Technology Building  

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees delegate authority to the Chancellor to 
approve a firm, based on staff recommendation, to provide professional design and 
construction commissioning services necessary to support the Center for Petrochemical, 
Energy, and Technology (Petrochem). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Petrochem center, located on the Central Campus, is a 2015 Bond Program project.  The 
building is being designed by IBI Texas architects and is in the design development phase 
currently. 
 
A pool of technical professional consultants has been developed and is proposed for review 
and approval by the Board of Trustees at the November 7, 2016 meeting.  Following review 
and subsequent action, the Chancellor will approve, based on staff recommendations, the firm 
deemed best suited to perform commissioning services on the Petrochem center project.  
 
Commissioning services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the 
Texas Government Code and a pool of firms were screened, pre-qualified and approved for 
use on projects on an as needed basis. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This action will result in successful third-party monitoring and oversight of the technical design 
and verification of operations of the systems incorporated in the Petrochem building project.  
In accordance with Section 2269.058 of the Texas Government Code, the College is required, 
independently of the construction manager-at-risk, to provide or contract with the construction 
materials engineering, testing, and inspection services and the verification testing services 
necessary for acceptance of the facility.  This action will provide an independent verification 
of the systems design and the actual installed performance of the systems in the building in 
relation to the designed intent and specifications. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The expenditure for this request is $66,000.  This expenditure will be funded by the 2015 Bond 
program as a project cost for the Petrochem center. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
All services are estimated to be completed within thirty (30) months from release to project 
completion.  This project will be monitored by San Jacinto College Facilities Services 
personnel. 
 

8 80



 Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Contract for Commissioning Services for  
Central Campus Petrochemical, Energy and Technology Building  

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   Bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Bill Dowell   281-998-6122   William.dowell@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103   Ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu 

9 81

mailto:Bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
mailto:William.dowell@sjcd.edu


Purchase Request #2 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Welding Trainers 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of two 
VRTEX® 360 Virtual Reality Arc Welding Trainers (VRTEX®) from the Lincoln Electric 
Company (L.E.) for the Welding Technology departments at Central and North campuses. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The VRTEX® trainers will help train our students on proper technique and muscle memory 
prior to working on live equipment.  The VRTEX® training equipment includes patented 
features that will help our students understand the welding technics used in the petrochemical 
industry. The equipment includes the Surface Tension Transfer® process which is a 
proprietary Lincoln Electric process that controls current precisely and rapidly during the 
welding cycle. Additionally, the equipment enables students to differentiate and change 
sound according to welding position. The machine supports simulated pipe welding and 
multiple position welding, which helps to provide a realistic job preview. Procurement of this 
equipment supports hands-on instructional methods enabling students to obtain the necessary 
skills required for a welding career in the pipeline or petrochemical industry.   
 
Lincoln Electric Company is a sole source provider of VRTEX® and is exempt from 
competitive bidding per Section 44.031(j) of the Texas Education code.  Sole source number 
1439 has been assigned. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Unique features of this equipment include its flexibility of multiple welding processes and 
positions, which allows modification based on preferred welding program and style.  The 
realistic features of welding puddle, welding sound, and magnetic tracking system aids in 
accurate measurements for student evaluation and improved classroom performance. Use of 
trainers in the classroom reduces the consumption of consumable material and environmental 
impact.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The purchase price for each trainer is $48,086 for a total expenditure of $96,172. The unit for 
Central Campus will funded with Perkins Basic Grant funds, and the unit for North Campus 
will be funded with 2015 Revenue Bond funds. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Equipment will be received no later than March 2017.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 

10 82



Purchase Request #2 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Welding Trainers 
 

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   Bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
William Dowell  281-998-6122   William.dowell@sjcd.edu 
Mike Harris   281-998-6134   Mike.harris@sjcd.edu 
Jeffrey Parks   281-998-1806   Jeffrey.parks@sjcd.edu 
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327   Angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 
 

11 83



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Amend the AECOM Contract for the 2015 Bond Program  
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a change to the contract with 
AECOM in order to provide project information management system (PIMS) services for the 
2015 Bond Program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In an effort to provide secure and readily accessible project information for the 2015 Bond 
Program, it is proposed the College amend the contract with AECOM in order to provide 
access to and use of its cloud-based construction PIMS known as Proliance.  The Proliance 
application is a construction enterprise management system that allows for development and 
tracking of the entire spectrum of activities needed to successfully manage a large capital 
improvement program. 
 
The College proposes to amend the current contract with AECOM in order to utilize the 
Proliance PIMS application in lieu of the previously proposed eBuilder application, which 
was considered during the scope development for program management services.   AECOM 
based its proposal on the ability to utilize the College’s anticipated eBuilder application; but 
with the College’s decision not to procure eBuilder, AECOM was subsequently asked to 
provide pricing for access to access its Proliance PIMS application. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
In order for AECOM to deliver the services for which they have committed, they require 
access to a PIMS. With the College’s decision to not purchase eBuilder, AECOM offered a 
significantly lower cost solution by providing access to its internal application, which will 
allow similar functionality that would have been provided if the College had purchased a 
stand-alone system while taking advantage of program operation efficiencies associated with 
a program management software.  Implementation and training for this application will be 
minimal as AECOM has internal resources fully versed in the functionality of Proliance.  All 
team members assigned to the 2015 Bond Program will be provided licenses and all 
appropriate processes will be created in the application. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The fee for implementing and licensure of the Proliance application for the 2015 Bond 
Program are less than $125,000.  The fees Proliance PIMS will be managed entirely though 
AECOM.  These expenditures are funded by the 2015 Bond Program. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Facilities Services department personnel will oversee implementation of this application 
and supported by the College ITS department.  It is proposed that Proliance PIMS will be 
brought onboard during the early stages of the 2015 Bond Program with full implementation 

12 84



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Amend the AECOM Contract for the 2015 Bond Program  
 

reached sixty (60) days after activation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
 

13 85



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Data Equipment 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve data and technology 
equipment purchases from Network Cabling Service (NCS) for the North Campus Center for 
Industrial Technology (CIT) facility, currently under construction. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the June 6, 2016 Board meeting, $300,000 was approved for expenditures with Network 
Cabling Services (NCS) for equipment and installation services for classroom and lab 
technologies, lecterns, conference rooms, and other audio visual equipment. The equipment 
and installation services align the requirements for the CIT building with the College’s 
standards. This request is for an additional $60,000.  The prior approval did not cover 
purchase and installation of video surveillance equipment required in order for the College 
Police Department to monitor the building which is located across Uvalde.  This additional 
request is also driven by the open ceiling design of the facility. 
 
The purchase and installation of additional audio visual equipment and services will be 
procured utilizing The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) contract number R5168 
awarded to NCS which complies with competitive procurement requirement in Section 
44.031 of the Texas Education Code and is permitted through Section 791.011(g) of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The purchase of equipment and installation services is essential to fulfill the requirements as 
specified by the College security personnel to monitor this stand-alone facility and to address 
the additional installation cost in instructional areas due to building design.   
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The quote provided by NCS for the equipment and labor services was compared to other 
vendors as well as the manufacturer of the surveillance system and NCS’s prices were 
approximately fifteen percent less than other suppliers.  
 
The requested additional funds for the audio visual contractor NCS is $60,000.  This will 
bring the total Board approved amount to $360,000. These expenditures will be funded by 
revenue bond funds. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

14 86



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Data Equipment 
 

None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343  bryan.jones@sjcd.edu  
Rob Stanicic   281-998-6137  rob.stanicic@sjcd.edu 
Jeff Tambrella   281-998-6353   jeff.tambrella@sjcd.edu 
Genie Freeman-Scholes 281-998-6349  genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 
 

15 87

mailto:rob.stanicic@sjcd.ed
mailto:jeff.tambrella@sjcd.edu
mailto:genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu


Item “A” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Approval of the Minutes for the October 10, 2016 
Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
October 10, 2016, Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting. 
 
 

88



San Jacinto College District Board Workshop 
October 10, 2016 

District Administration Building, Suite 201 
 

MINUTES 
 

 Board 
Workshop 
Attendees: 

Board Members: Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance, Dan Mims, 
John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson 
Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer  
Others: Chet Lewis, Mandi Reiland, Steve Trncak 

 
Agenda Item: Discussion/Information 

I.  Call the Meeting 
to Order 

Workshop began at 5:17 p.m. 

II.  Roll Call of 
Board Members 
 

Board Members: Dan Mims, Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance, 
John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson  
 

III.  Adjournment to 
closed or 
executive session 
pursuant to 
Texas 
Government 
Code Section 
551.072 &   
551.074, of the 
Texas Open 
Meetings Act 
 

Adjourned to closed session at 5:18 p.m. 
 
Real estate - For the purpose of discussing the purchase or 
exchange of real property. 

 
Personnel Matters - For the deliberation of the appointment, 
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or 
dismissal of specific employees.   

a. Chancellor Evaluation  
  

IV.  Reconvene in 
Open Meeting  
 

Reconvened in open meeting at 5:53 p.m.  
 
Larry Wilson left the meeting after the closed session.   

V.  Aspen Institute 
Interview 
 

Brenda Hellyer explained the schedule for the Aspen Institute 
interviews. The Institute picked two days and gave specifics of 
who they wanted to interview. The Board is being interviewed 
on October 13, at 10:15 am.  
 
Brenda gave an overview of the interviewers.  
 

1 
 

89



She met with the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) to put 
together some prep information for the Board. The SLT 
compiled the items that the Board has expressed in the past 
regarding the College vision and mission, and other pivotal 
items that the Board has provided guidance on and worked 
through. Brenda felt like she captured the Board goals in these 
documents.  She mentioned that they should add any other 
items they would like but hopefully this gives them a good 
start.  
 
Dan Mims and Marie Flickinger mentioned that advising is an 
area that we need to look into and the prize money would help 
with that.  
 
Marie said that another game changer was the one college 
vision. Brenda explained that she will add this to the prep 
documents.  
 
We anticipate having a celebration with the College, because 
being named a top 10 institutions is a bid deal that deserves 
celebration.  
 

VI.  Implementations 
of New Fair 
Labor 
Standards Act 
(FLSA) Changes  
 

Steve Trncak gave overview of the implementations of the new 
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) changes.   
 
He explained that a key provision of the FLSA is that all 
positions receive overtime pay unless they qualify for an 
exemption by meeting both of the following: specific tests 
regarding the nature of their job duties, and are paid on a salary 
meeting the minimum requirement. On December 1, 2016, the 
salary basis minimum will increase from $23,660 to $47,476.  
 
Approximately 150 positions could have been affected by the 
rule change. The Human Resources compensation team audited 
position descriptions and reviewed job duties to ensure 
compliance to the requirements defined in the Department of 
Labor standards for exemption. The compensation team met 
with the Strategic Leadership Team to review the positions that 
would be affected and classify them correctly. Compensation 
identified 77 employees affected by the audit rule change. The 
final positions affected are:  

• 25 positions identified that should be non-exempt 
• 37 positions that are exempt, but are currently paid less 

than the new regulatory minimum 
• 15 positions that are exempt and paid above the 

regulatory minimum  

2 
 

90



 
All 77 affected employees will meet with their leaders in 
October and receive a letter explaining the changes resulting 
from the new regulations and Human Resources compensation 
audit. The letters have conveyed that nay adjustments are only 
being changed to meet federal regulations and are not a 
reflection of their performance or the value we place in their 
job.  
 
The Department of Labor Wage and Hour Division audits are 
unannounced and the investigator will select three positions of 
their choice for auditing. If they find an infraction in any those 
three positions, they can continue examining all positions until 
they are satisfied that the organization is in compliance. 
Infraction results in retroactive pay for all claimed overtime 
hours for the preceding two years plus an equal amount as 
punitive charge.  
 
The Board did not have any questions.  
 

VII.  Election 
Locations  
 

This item will be reviewed in more detail at a future Board 
meeting if needed. The only entity that has requested a campus 
location was the City of La Porte and La Porte Independent 
School District.   

VIII.  Presentation of 
the San Jacinto 
College Crime 
Statistics  
 

Chet Lewis gave overview of the San Jacinto College crime 
statistics. The annual campus security and fire safety report 
was distributed to the Board for review. We are in compliance 
with all requirements of the Clery act.  
 
Chet explained that there were a total of nine events in 2015. 
Eight of which were considered reportable and one was an 
unfounded crime.   
 

IX.  General 
Discussion of 
Meeting Items 

There were no additional items discussed.  

X.  Calendar 
 

Brenda reviewed the Board calendar.  
 
Dan mentioned that the past golf tournaments have been a 
success but it is time to start looking at other fundraising event 
opportunities. Brenda has asked people involved with planning 
to analyze this year’s tournament and consider other options.  

3 
 

91



XI.  Adjournment 
 

Workshop adjourned at 6:40 p.m.  

 

4 
 

92



San Jacinto College District 
Board Meeting Minutes 

 
October 10, 2016 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 7:00 p.m., 
Monday, October 10, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for the Regular Board Meeting. 

 
Board of 
Trustees: 
 
 
 
 
 
Absent:  
 

   Marie Flickinger 
   Brad Hance  
   Dan Mims, Chair 
   John Moon, Jr., Secretary  
   Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary  
   Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
    
   Larry Wilson, Vice Chair  
 

Chancellor:    Brenda Hellyer 
 

Others Present: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amy Austin Chet Lewis  
Dean Barnes Kevin McKisson  
Rhonda Bell Kevin Morris  
Michelle Callaway Catherine O'Brien  
Pam Campbell Alexander Okwonna  
Teri Crawford Jeff Parks  
Suzanne DeBlanc Bill Raffetto  
Bill Dickerson Denise Segelquist  
Chris Duke Shawn Silman  
Kenneth English Charity Simpson  
George González Debbie Smith  
Rebecca Goosen Danny Snooks  
Allatia Harris Janice Sullivan  
Joseph Hebert Rob Stanicic  
Clare Iannelli John Stauffer  
Sallie Kay Janes Steve Trncak  
Michael Kane Van Wigginton  
Ruth Keenan Laurel Williamson  
Tami Kelly Craig Zimmerman  
Angela Klause   
Patsy Laredo   
David LeMaster   
   
   
   

  

1 
 93



Call the Meeting 
to order: 
 

Chair Dan Mims called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees to 
order at 7:00 p.m.   

Roll Call of Board 
Members:  
 
 
 
  
Absent:  

Marie Flickinger 
Brad Hance 
John Moon, Jr.  
Keith Sinor 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
 
Larry Wilson  
 

Invocation and 
Pledges to the 
Flags: 

The invocation was given by Brenda Jones. The pledges to the American 
flag and the Texas flag were led by John Moon, Jr.   
 
 

Special 
Announcements, 
Recognitions, and 
Presentations: 
 

1. Chet Lewis recognized the Fiscal Affairs Department for receiving the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  

2. Chet Lewis recognized the Purchasing Department for receiving the 
2016 Annual Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award.  

3. Mark Johnson presented an update on Achieving the Dream Open 
Educational Resources grant progress.  
 

Student Success 
Presentations: 
 

1. George González presented on an overview of summer headcount, 
retention, and success rates.  

2. George González presented on an overview of the top 15 transfer 
institutions.   
 

Communications 
to the Board: 

1. A copy of the most recent Houston Chronicle Opportunity News 
segment was at each Board members place.  
 

Hearing of Such 
Citizens or 
Groups of 
Citizens Desiring 
to be Heard 
Before the Board: 
 

There were no citizens desiring to be heard before the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Informative 
Reports: 

Dan Mims indicated such reports were in the board documents. 
 

2 
 94



Motion 9741 
Consideration of 
Approval of 
Amendment to 
the 2016-2017 
Budget for 
Restricted 
Revenue and 
Expenses Relating 
to Federal and 
State Grants 
 

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Brad Hance, for 
Approval of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget for Restricted Revenue 
and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9742  
Consideration of 
Adoption of Ad 
Valorem Property 
Tax Rate 
 

Motion was made by Keith Sinor, seconded by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, for 
Approval of Adoption of Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9743 
Consideration of 
Policy 2-19: 
Policy on 
Electioneering – 
Second Reading 
 

Motion was made by Brad Hance, seconded by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, for 
Approval of Policy 2-19: Policy on Electioneering – Second Reading.  
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9744 
Consideration of 
Extension of the 
Interlocal 
Agreement with 
the City of 
Shoreacres to 
Provide Security 
and Police 
Services at the 
Maritime 
Technology and 
Training Center  
 

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by John Moon, Jr., for 
Approval of Extension of the Interlocal Agreement with the City of 
Shoreacres to Provide Security and Police Services at the Maritime 
Technology and Training Center.   
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9745  
Consideration of 
Approval of 
Addendum to 
Chancellor’s 
Employment 

Motion was made by Marie Flickinger, seconded by Keith Sinor, for 
Approval of Addendum to Chancellor’s Employment Contract with San 
Jacinto College District. 
 
Motion Carried.  
 

3 
 95



Contract with 
San Jacinto 
College District 
 

Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9746 
Consideration of 
Purchasing 
Requests 

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by John Moon, Jr., for 
approval of the purchasing requests.  
 
RFP 16-28   
    Sign Language Interpreting Services                      $1,067,000  
   
RFP 16-29   
    Remote CART Services                                                    80,000  
   
RFP 17-01   
    Turnkey Magazine Production Services                          305,000 
 
Purchase Request #1 -    
   Purchase Audio Visual and Cabling Products              240,000  
   
Purchase Request #2 -    
    Renew the Printing Collaterals Contract                          235,000  
   
Purchase Request #3 -    
    Renew the Charter Bus Services Contract                          190,000  
   
Purchase Request #4   
    Method of Procurement for Central Campus Welcome Center           -  
   
Purchase Request #5   
    Method of Procurement for North Campus   
    Cosmetology and Culinary Center                                            -  
   
Purchase Request #6 -    
    Method of Procurement for South Campus   
    Cosmetology Center                                                        - 
   
TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS                   $2,117,000 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 
 

Motion 9747 
Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Marie Flickinger, seconded by Keith Sinor, to 
approve the consent agenda.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler 

4 
 96



Nays: None  
 

Adjournment: 
 

Meeting Adjourned at 7:33 p.m.  

 

5 
 97



Item “B” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Approval of the Minutes for the October 3, 2016 Public Hearing 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
October 3, 2016, public hearing.  

98



San Jacinto College District 
Public Hearing Minutes 

 
October 3, 2016 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 6:00 p.m., 
Monday, October 3, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for a Public Hearing. 

 
Board of 
Trustees: 
 
 
 
 
 
Absent:  
 

Marie Flickinger 
Brad Hance 
John Moon, Jr., Secretary   
Dan Mims, Chair 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
Larry Wilson, Vice Chair  
 
Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor  
Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary  

  

Others Present: Teri Crawford 
Chet Lewis  
Mandi Reiland  
 

Call the Meeting 
to order: 
 

Chair Dan Mims called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees to 
order at 6:00 p.m.   

Roll Call of Board 
Members:  
 
 
 
  
Absent:  

Marie Flickinger 
Brad Hance 
John Moon, Jr.  
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
Larry Wilson 
 
Keith Sinor  

 
Presentation on 
the Proposed Tax 
Rate:  

 
Chet Lewis stated that if anyone watching is interested in details on the 
proposed tax rate presentation, the full video from the first public hearing 
is archived on the College’s website.   
 
The first public hearing was on September 26, 2016, and tonight is the 
second public hearing.  The meeting to adopt the tax rate will be held on 
October 10, 2016.  
 
Chet explained that the proposed 2016 tax rate is $0.182379. These rates 
are per $100 of taxable valuation.   
 
The proposed 2016 Maintenance & Operations rate is $ 0.129194, which is 
the same rate as the prior year rate. The proposed 2016 debt rate is 
$0.053185 which is higher than the prior year due to the issuance of $150 
million of new voter approved debt offset by refinancing of debt. 

1 
 99



Public Comment 
on Proposed Tax 
Rate:  

There were no citizens desiring to be heard before the Board. 

Adjournment: 
 

Meeting Adjourned at 6:03 p.m.  

 

2 
 100



Item “C” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Consideration of Approval of Budget Transfers 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve budget transfers for 
2016-2017 which have been made in accordance with State accounting procedures. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Adoption of the budget by the Board of Trustees in August of each year serves as the 
authorization to expend funds for the next fiscal year. The budget is adopted by functional 
classification (or cost elements: Instruction, Academic Support, Student Services, 
Institutional Support, and Operation and Maintenance of Plant) as defined by the National 
Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Realizing that the 
budget is a viable document that reflects the evolving needs of the College in terms of 
meeting goals and objectives, occasional movement of budgeted funds between cost elements 
is desirable and warranted. The budget transfers under consideration represent previously 
authorized expenditures that are requested to be reclassified from one cost element to another 
cost element. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget transfers will allow the College to more effectively utilize existing 
resources in fulfilling its instructional objectives. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
This request is a reclassification of existing authorizations. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Budget Transfers 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chet Lewis   281-998-6306   chet.lewis@sjcd.edu 
Mini Izaguirre   281-998-6347   mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu  

101

mailto:mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu


ELEMENT OF COST DEBIT CREDIT
DISTRICT

INSTRUCTION -                   -                   
PUBLIC SERVICE -                   -                   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 108,000           -                   
STUDENT SERVICES -                   -                   
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT 29,351             119,234           
PHYSICAL PLANT 7,179               -                   
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                   -                   

CENTRAL
INSTRUCTION 26,590             -                   
PUBLIC SERVICE -                   -                   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 9,830               53,551             
STUDENT SERVICES -                   -                   
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT -                   -                   
PHYSICAL PLANT -                   -                   
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                   -                   

NORTH
INSTRUCTION 2,000               -                   
PUBLIC SERVICE -                   -                   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT -                   5,415               
STUDENT SERVICES -                   -                   
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT -                   -                   
PHYSICAL PLANT -                   -                   
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                   -                   

SOUTH
INSTRUCTION -                   5,128               
PUBLIC SERVICE -                   -                   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 5,293               4,915               
STUDENT SERVICES -                   -                   
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT -                   -                   
PHYSICAL PLANT -                   -                   
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                   -                   

188,244           188,244           

These transfers reflect adjustments of budgetary allocations between
campuses and departments. 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Budget Transfers For The November 7, 2016 Board Meeting

Budget Transfers Related to Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017

102



Item “E” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend Board approval of the following Affiliation Agreements: 
 
Central Campus  
Department       Affiliation Entity 
Associate Degree Nursing Program    Behavioral Hospital of Bellaire 

 
Eye Care Technology Program    University of Houston College of 

Optometry 
  
  

South Campus 
Department       Affiliation Entity 
Physical Therapist Assistant Program   Wallisville Healthcare Inc. d/b/a 

Legend Oaks Healthcare & 
Rehabilitation Center 

 
 
RATIONALE 
 
The Affiliation Agreements were reviewed by the College’s external legal counsel. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE 
 
N/A 
 
CONTACT PERSONNEL 
 
Daniel J. Snooks, Attorney  
Laurel Williamson  281-998-6184   laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 

103

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu


Item “F” 
Regular Board Meeting November 7, 2016 

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be Monday,  
December 12, 2016. 
 
 

104


	01 Cover Sheet 11-07-16
	02 Board Workshop Agenda 11-07-16
	03 Board Meeting Agenda 11-07-16
	04 Financials Sept. 2016
	05 Foundation Financials Sept. 2016
	06 CIP Reports_All
	07 Building Committee minutes 2016-10-25
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
	Building Committee Meeting
	October 25, 2016

	08 Finance Committee Minutes 102516
	San Jacinto College District
	Finance Committee Meeting
	October 25, 2016
	Members Present: Dan Mims, John Moon, Ruede Wheeler, and Larry Wilson
	Members Absent: None
	Other Trustees:  Marie Flickinger
	Others Present:  Lori Barbay, Bret Boudreaux, Brenda Hellyer, and Chet Lewis

	09 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FISCAL AFFAIRS NOV 07
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	09.1 Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-11-07-16
	Sheet1

	09.2 Attachment 2-Grant Detail-11-07-16
	10 Sheldon ECHS MOU Board Agenda Item November 2016
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	10.1 SHELDON ECHS MOU 2016_2018 final
	11 Board action item v5
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12 Purchasing Package
	00 October 2016 Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	01 RFP #16-25 Temp Personnel Svc 11.3 HR CLEAN
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	02 RFP 16-25 Attachment No. 1 -Rev. 11.3.2016 (2)
	Board Book

	03 RFQ #16-10 Professional Services 10.18.16 AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	04 RFQ 16-10 Attach #1
	Qualifications Scores

	05 PR 01 C Campus Petrochem Commissioning-10.19.16 CLEAN
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	06 PR 02- Welding Trainers AKT 10-18-16
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	07 PR 03 AECOM change order for PIMS  CLEAN 10.19.16
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	08 PR 04 -North CIT-IT Equip, Add'l funding AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	21 Item A
	21.1 Board Workshop minutes 10-10-16
	21.2 Board Meeting Minutes 10-10-16
	22 Item B
	22.1 Board Public Hearing Minutes 10-3-16
	23 20161107 Board Meeting
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	23 Element of Cost November 2016
	Elements of Cost

	26 Item E
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
	CONTACT PERSONNEL

	27 Item F
	RECOMMENDATION




